
Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING  
PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING & PARTICIPATION   

 
City Council will Meet Electronically on July 25, 2022 

 
Due to the ongoing efforts to limit the spread of the COVID-19 virus, the July 25, 2022 meeting will be 
conducted via videoconference. 
 
Observe and/or Listen to the Meeting (your options to join the meeting are below): 
Webinar via the link below: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81583804139?pwd=R0tkaU50c1JmNW5RY1lUODArdkcxUT09 
Passcode: 855150 

 
Live Stream via YouTube: 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ 
 
Audio Only Call   

Or iPhone one-tap :  
 US: +13126266799,,81583804139#  or +16469313860,,81583804139#  
Or Telephone: 
        US: +1 312 626 6799  or +1 646 931 3860  or +1 929 205 6099  or +1 301 715 859  or  
888 788 0099 (Toll Free) or 877 853 5247 (Toll Free) 
Webinar ID: 815 8380 4139 
    International numbers available: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kdzSMj7KU4 

 
Citizen Participation and/or Public Hearing Comments: 
Those who wish to provide a comment during the "Citizen Participation" portion as indicated on the City Council 
agenda; may provide written comments to the City Clerk ahead of the meeting. 
 
ALL written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.  Comments may be  
sent via email to: councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. – Attention City 
Clerk.  Such comments will be provided to City Council prior to the meeting.  Comments will be made a part of the 
official record and made accessible to the public online following the meeting.  
 
Please note, when submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also note if your 
comment is on an agenda or non-agenda item. If a name and address are not provided, the provided comment will 
not be recorded in the official record.  

The City apologizes for any inconvenience the meeting format change may pose to individuals, but it is extremely 
important that extra measures be taken to protect employees, residents, and elected officials during these 
challenging times. 
  

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 
VIA VIDEOCONFERENCE 

Monday, July 25, 2022 
5:30 p.m. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81583804139?pwd=R0tkaU50c1JmNW5RY1lUODArdkcxUT09
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kdzSMj7KU4
mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


Page 2 of 2 
 

    
 
A.    MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 

B. ROLL CALL 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

D. PROCLAMATIONS - none 

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – none 

F. APPOINTMENTS to BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
1. Cindy Liberman is nominated for appointment to the Loop Special Business District Board as a fill in, 

replacing Joe Edwards expired seat by Mayor Terry Crow. 
G. SWEARING IN TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS - none 

H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION  
Procedures for submitting comments for Citizen Participation and Public Hearings: 
ALL written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.  Comments may be  sent via email 
to:  councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. – Attention City Clerk.  Such comments will 
be provided to City Council prior to the meeting.  Comments will be made a part of the official record and made accessible to the 
public online following the meeting.  
Please note, when submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also not if your comment is on 
an agenda or non-agenda item. If a name and address are not provided, the provided comment will not be recorded in the 
official record. 
I. PUBLIC HEARINGS - none 

J. CONSENT AGENDA 
1. Cochran Supplemental Agreement 
2. Ferguson Ave. TAP Application 
3. Solid Waste Automated Truck Purchase 
 

K. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT   (vote required) 
1. Avenir – Chapter 353 Referral to the Plan Commission 

L. UNFINISHED BUSINESS - none 

M. NEW BUSINESS 
Resolutions   (vote required) 

1. Res 2022-8  FY23 Budget Amendment #1 - Additional funds for Comprehensive Planning Update     
consultant. 

N. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 
1.  Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2.  Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 
3.  Boards, Commissions and Task Force minutes 
4.  Other Discussions/Business 

O. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

P. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Motion to go into a Closed Session according to Missouri Revised Statutes 610.021 (1) Legal actions, causes 
of action or litigation involving a public governmental body and any confidential or privileged communications 
between a public governmental body or its representatives or attorneys  

 
Q. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Posted 22nd  day of July 2022. 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 
VIA VIDEOCONFERENCE 

Monday, July 25, 2022 
5:30 p.m. 

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


J - 1 - 1



University City/Cochran       - Page 1 -          Supplemental Agreement #10 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT #10 –  
LUMP SUM PROPOSAL 

 
July 17, 2022 

 
This Supplemental Agreement is made part of the Contract dated October 16, 2020, and 
approved by the City on November 2, 2020, between the City of University City and 
Cochran for Professional Civil Engineering Services.  The purpose for this Lump Sum 
Proposal is to provide Professional Engineering Services for the Ferguson Avenue ADA 
Sidewalks to Schools TAP Project.  In accordance with our previous discussions, we offer 
the following professional services: 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES: 
 

1. Grant Application Services – we will prepare and submit a grant application in 
this current round of TAP solicitations, due August 19, 2022. The application 
shall be in accordance with scope of work identified on the attached cost 
estimate.  The application is a very detailed and involved process; here are some 
of the questions and information required on the application: 

 
a. Project map showing limits of improvements 
b. Written description of proposed project 
c. Description of how the project relates to surface transportation in terms of 

function, impact, and proximity. 
d. Discuss how the project enhances the overall transportation system 

network, complementing other improvements, providing linkages to transit 
and employment, improving network continuity, improving accessibility and 
safety, complete streets improvements, etc. 

e. Public involvement activities to obtain public and community support. 
f. Average daily traffic (ADT) counts 
g. Description of bicycle and pedestrian elements 
h. Detailed cost estimate 
i. Project implementation schedule 

 
2. Design and Bidding Phase – we will provide professional services necessary to 

produce a quality set of construction and bidding documents.  The scope will be 
in accordance with the attached cost estimate.  Tasks will include the following: 

  
a. Determine the needs of the City by meeting with City officials and 

representative interest groups.   
b. Conduct topographic, property and utility surveys sufficient to develop plans 

for the project. 
c. Develop preliminary plans and cost estimates and recommend to the City 

the best overall general design. 

J - 1 - 2



University City/Cochran       - Page 2 -          Supplemental Agreement #10 

d. Submit four copies of preliminary plans and estimates for review by the City 
and the Missouri Department of Transportation. 

e. Based on approvals of preliminary plans, prepare detailed construction 
plans, cost estimates, specifications and related documents as necessary 
for the purpose of soliciting bids for constructing the project. 

f. Ensure compliance with all regulations in regards to noise abatement and 
air quality, if necessary. 

g. Provide the City with five sets of completed plans, specifications and cost 
estimates for the purpose of obtaining construction authorization from the 
Missouri Department of Transportation. 

h. Upon receipt of construction authorization from MODOT, make final 
corrections resulting from reviews by agencies involved and provide plans, 
specifications, and bid documents to the City. 

i. Provide the City with a list of qualified area bidders and assist the City in 
advertising for bids. 

j. Assist the City in evaluating bids and requesting concurrence in award from 
MoDOT. 

 
3. Construction Phase - we will serve as the City’s representative for administering 

the terms of the construction contract between the City and their Contractor.  
Cochran will endeavor to protect the City against defects and deficiencies in 
workmanship and materials in work by the Contractor.  However, the furnishing of 
such project representation will not make Cochran responsible for the construction 
methods and procedures used by the Contractor or for the Contractor's failure to 
perform work in accordance with the contract documents.  Tasks will include the 
following: 

 
a. Provide the City with a list of qualified area bidders and assist in advertising 

for bids, distributing bid packages, pre-bid conference, addendums, and 
pre-bid questions from Contractors. 

b. Assist the City in opening and evaluating bids and requesting concurrence 
in award from MoDOT. 

c. Assist the City with a preconstruction conference to discuss project details 
with the Contractor. 

d. Make periodic site visits to observe the Contractor's progress and quality of 
work, and to determine if the work conforms to the contract documents.  It 
is contemplated that survey staking and layout will be accomplished by the 
contractor's forces.  We will accompany MoDOT and FHWA representatives 
on visits of the project site as requested. 

e. Check shop drawings and review schedules and drawings submitted by the 
Contractor. 

f. Reject work not conforming to the project documents. 
g. Prepare change orders for issuance by the City as necessary and assure 

that proper approvals are made prior to work being performed. 
h. Review wage rates, postings, equal employment opportunity and other 

related items called for in the contract documents. 

J - 1 - 3



University City/Cochran       - Page 3 -          Supplemental Agreement #10 

i. Inspect materials, review material certifications furnished by Contractor, 
sample concrete and other materials as required, and provide for laboratory 
testing of samples.   

j. Maintain progress diary and other project records, measure and document 
quantities, and prepare monthly estimates for payments due the Contractor. 

k. Be present during critical construction operations. 
l. Participate in final inspection, provide the City with project documentation 

(diaries, test results, certifications, etc.), and provide as-built plans for the 
City’s records. 

 
FEE: 

 
1. The total amount of fee to be paid for the “Grant Application Services” outlined in 

this proposal shall be a lump sum fee of $5,000.00.  We offer that if the application 
is not approved, we will reimburse the entire fee. 

 
2. If the grant is awarded by EWG, the total amount of fee to be paid for the “Design 

and Bidding Phase” outlined in this proposal shall be a lump sum fee of 
$69,052.00.   

 
3. The total amount of fee to be paid for the “Construction Phase” outlined in this 

proposal shall be a lump sum fee of $51,789.00.   
 
 
 
Supplement Agreement No. 10 accepted as defined herein: 
 
 
Sincerely, Acceptance: 
 University City 
 
 
 
Dave Christensen, P.E. By:       
Vice President  
  
 Title:       
 
  
  Date:       
 
 

J - 1 - 4



J -2 - 1



TAP Project:
 Ferguson Avenue ADA Sidewalk to Schools Project

City of University City – Project Location Map

Ferguson Avenue – new ADA 
compliant sidewalks and entrances on 

both sides of the roadway

Pershing 
Elementary 

School

J -2 - 2



Project Cost Estimate - Construction Only Grant 

University City - Ferguson Avenue ADA Sidewalk to Schools Project
Item 
No. Item Description Unit Plan 

Quantity Unit Price ($) Total ($)

1 Removal of Improvements LS 1 55,000.00 55,000

2 Linear Grading STA 27 850.00 22,950

3 Curb and Gutter LF 5,400 28.50 153,900

4 ADA Compliant Sidewalk SF 32,400 8.00 259,200

5 Driveway Entrances SF 3,600 9.00 32,400

6 Construction Mobilization LS 1 42,000.00 42,000

7 Construction Traffic Control LS 1 35,000.00 35,000

General Notes: Construction Totals 600,450

  1.  From Olive Blvd. to Melrose Ave. 15% Contingency 90,068

  2.  Approximate Length = 0.51 Miles STP Project Total = 690,518

  3.  Construction 2024 Federal Share @ 80% = 552,414

Local Share @ 20% = 138,104

EWGCC Application Fee (1/2% of Federal Funds Requested) = 2,762

 Surveying/Design Engineering Services 69,052

Const. Admin./Inspection/Testing 51,789

$261,706

TAP Application - Due August 19, 2022

City Expenditure (EWG Fee + TAP 20% Share + Engineering + Application Fee) =

 7/15/22J -2 - 3



J -2 - 4



J - 3 - 1



S E R I E S

With the New Way® Sidewinder XTR™ Automated Side Loader, 
efficiency is always at your side. Enjoy smooth one-operator 
convenience and a faster compaction rate than any other side 
loader on the market. Combine the strongest frame-mounted arm 
in the industry—boasting a 12-foot reach—with the convenience 
of automated loading and the ability to maneuver in tight 
spaces and you have an agile, ultra-tough, overbuilt loader.

TRACTION IN 
ANY ENVIRONMENT

TM

J - 3 - 2



 † As measured from top of truck frame.
  *Any Chassis sent to Scranton Manufacturing with less than the minimum guideline requirements will not be 

mounted. 
 (Chassis must be capable of carrying the net weight of the body plus the weight of the refuse collected.)

**May require optional equipment.

STANDARD EQUIPMENT
- Pack-on-the-Go
- Twin 14.5” x 7” clean out doors
- Chrome cylinder rods w/scrapers
- Interlocked side access hopper door
- Nitro carbonite single-hoist cylinder
- Sight gauge on reservoir tank
- Tailgate ajar alarm
- Imron elite productive paint
- High-grade hydraulic fluid
- Dual camera system
- Reinforced frame-mounted arm
- In-line heavy duty grippers
- Sealed roller bearings on packer follower 
panels
- Ergonomic in-cab control panel and joystick
- Smooth body sidewall design
- Positive automatic tailgate lock
- Back-up alarm
- Body ajar alarm
- Hour meter
- “Arm stowed” indicator
- LED lights
- ANSI Z245.1-2017 compliant
- Multi-cycle packer
- Home position arm lock
- Fold-up valve door

OPTIONAL EQUIPMENT
- Hydraulic hopper cover
- 300 gallon gripper
- Camera options
- Additional arm controls
- Hopper ladder
- Broom/shovel racks
- Arm cycle counter
- CNG powered
- West Coast/Lightweight model also available
  (1,500 lbs reduction)
- Choice of control systems: 
     - Air over hydraulic controls  
     - CAN bus controls for in-cab diagnostics
- In-cab adjustable gripper pressure

PACKER SPECIFICATIONS
 Hopper Capacity 6 yd³
 Packer Swept Volume 2 yd³
 Packer Cycle Time 21 secs.
 Ram Penetration 8.5”
 Ram Compaction Force 75,000 lbs @ 3,000 psi

BODY CONSTRUCTION
 Roof 10 gauge 80K
 Sides 1/8” AR450
 Packer Panel ¼” AR450
 Body Floor 3/16” AR450
 Tailgate Back 1/8” AR450
 Tailgate Sides 10 gauge 80K
 Hopper Floor/Sides ¼” AR450
 Ram Guide 3/8” x 3” AR400 wear strips top 
   ¼” sides 

HYDRAULIC SYSTEM
 Oil Reservoir 70 gal
 Oil Flow Rate
 Body 20 gpm @ 750 RPM
 Arm 18 gpm @ 750 RPM
 Body Operating Pressure
 22-24 yd3 units 2,500 psi
 29-31 yd3 units 3,000 psi
 Arm Operating Pressure 2,000 psi
 Hoses 4-to-1 burst
 Return Filters Dual in-tank 10 micron absolute

HYDRAULIC CYLINDER SPECIFICATIONS
 Tailgate Cylinders 3” x 30” x 2”
 Pack Panel Cylinders 4” x 43“ x 2.5”
 Gripper Cylinder 1.5” x 5” x 1”
 Vertical Lift Cylinder 3” x 16” x 2”
 Body Hoist Cylinder
 22-24 yd³ 6.5” x 150” 4-Stage
 29-31 yd³ 6.5” x 180” 4-Stage
 Horizontal Mast Cylinder 2” x 54” x 1.25”
 Hopper Cover Cylinder 2” x 18” x 1.25”

MINIMUM CHASSIS SPECIFICATIONS
 Model 22 A 24 A 29 A 31 A 31XL 33
 *Minimum GVWR 46,000 lbs 46,000 lbs 64,000 lbs 64,000 lbs 64,000 lbs 64,000 lbs 
 Cab to Trunnion 160” 160” 194” 194” 218”-226” 218”-226”

 Model 22 A 24 A 29 A 31 A 31XL 33YD³
 Body Capacity 22 yd³ 24 yd³ 29 yd³ 31 yd³ 31 yd³ 31 yd³
 Body Width (A) 96” 96” 96” 96” 96” 96”
 Body Height (B) 108” 108” 108” 108” 108” 108”
 Body Length (C) 237” 247” 286” 297” 305” 316”
 †Raised Tailgate Height 213.5” 213.5” 213.5” 213.5” 213.5” 213.5”
 †Body Height (Raised)  195” 195” 229” 229” 273.5” 273.5”

GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS

AUTHORIZED NEW WAY DISTRIBUTOR

ARM SPECIFICATIONS
 Arm Extension 144”
 **Arm Lifting Capacity Up to 1,000 lbs
 Horizontal Mast Bearings 6
 Arm Cycle Time 6-8 secs.

A

B

C

22-2445 REV 01-22

· 800 831 1858 · www.newwaytrucks.com

TM

® 

Contract # 091219-NWY

        

ALSO AVAILABLE IN 18 AND 20 YD³ MODELS

J - 3 - 3



Sales Order
Date

7/14/2022

S.O. No.

109658

Name / Address

City of University City
1015 Pennsylvania
University City, MO 63130

Ship To

City of University City
1015 Pennsylvania
University City, MO 63130

4000 SE Beisser Dr
Grimes, IA 50111

P.O. No. Terms

Due on receipt

Rep

JRN

Ship Date

7/22/2022

Ship Via

Elliott

FOB

Customer is responsible for sales tax and licensing fees.

Customer Signature X

Phone: (515) 986-4840

Fax: (515) 986-9530

Total

14001 Botts Rd
Grandview, MO 64030
Phone: (816) 761-4840

Elliott Sanitation Equip. Co.
1245 Dawes Avenue
Lincoln, NE 68521
Phone: (402) 474-4840

3100 West 76th Street
Davenport, IA 52806
Phone: (563) 391-4840

4000 S.E. Beisser Drive
Grimes, IA 50111
Phone: (515) 986-4840
Fax: (515) 986-9530

DO NOT PAY FROM SALES
ORDER. WE WILL SEND AN

INVOICE.

Item Description QuantitySite Rate Amount

Sidewinder New 2021 Dennis Eagle provision with 31yd
Sidewinder refuse packer. 
Pricing includes all chassis and body surcharges,
dealer upgrades, delivery, and training for the
maintenance crew as well as the operators on the
unit.
Source Well  #091219 NWY
Chassis ($185,000) Pass through

1Missouri 354,000.00 354,000.00T

Customers Exempt From Sales Tax 0.00% 0.00

_____________________________________

$354,000.00

J - 3 - 4



K - 1 - 1



K - 1 - 2



 
 

M E M O R A N D U M  
City Council 

 
TO:    City Council 
FROM:   John Wagner, Director of Planning & Development 
DATE:   July 25, 2022 

SUBJECT: Avenir Chapter 353  

 
 

The Memo outlined below was presented to the Plan Commission on March 23, 2022. The 
Commission voted to consider the request at a later meeting in order to have more time to read 
the supporting documents. This subsequent meeting was scheduled for March 31, 2022. 
Updated materials were provided to the Commission on March 28, 2022 after receiving them 
from the Applicant earlier that day. 
 
The meeting summary from the March 31, 2022 Plan Commission meeting is attached to 
provide a better understanding of the discussion that evening. There were five (5) 
Commissioners on the Zoom call; two (2) were unable to attend. The discussion lasted for an 
hour and twenty minutes. There were two (2) votes required of the Commission: a vote on the 
determination of blight and a vote to approve the tax abatement. The blight determination took 
up most of the time that evening, as is evident from the meeting summary. The blight 
determination was approved by a vote of three (3) yes and two (2) no. The tax abatement was 
denied by a vote of four (4) no and one (1) yes.  
 
Planning Commission 
This agenda item concerns the request by Charles Deutsch and Company for a tax abatement 
proposal for the recently approved Avenir development. Specifically, the Commission will be 
considering a Chapter 353 Tax Abatement Application request for 100% tax abatement for five 
(5) years. The proposed tax abatement will be associated with a mixed-use development of 6.2 
acres. Specifically, the development will be along the south side of Delmar Boulevard, and 
between McKnight Place and Kingdel Drive. The development will be comprised of 262 
apartments and a 1,300 square-foot coffee shop. 
 
In accordance with the provisions set forth in Section 510.070 of the University City Code the 
request pertaining to this application requires a commission recommendation to the Mayor and 
Council to determine the following;  

1.  Whether the area proposed to be redeveloped pursuant to the plan is a blighted area   
as defined in Section 510.040 and redevelopment of the area under the Urban 
Redevelopment Corporation Law and this Chapter is necessary or advisable to 
effectuate the public purposes declared herein and is in the public interest; 

2.      Whether the plan is in the public interest; 

3.  Whether the public facilities of school, fire, water, sewer, police, transportation, park 
and playground, public or private are presently adequate or will be adequate at the 
time the redevelopment project is completed; 

PLAN COMMISSION 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 

K - 1 - 3



4.  Whether the proposed changes, if any, in zoning ordinances or maps are necessary 
or desirable for the redevelopment of the area or its protection against blighting 
influences or both; 

5.  Whether the acquisition of any part of the real property included in the area to be 
redeveloped pursuant to the plan by eminent domain is for the public convenience 
and necessity; 

6.  Whether the proposed changes, if any, in streets and street levels or any proposed 
street closings are necessary or desirable for the redevelopment of the area or as 
protection against blighting influences or both; 

7.  Whether the size of the area proposed by the proposed plan will allow a practical and 
satisfactory development. 

K - 1 - 4

https://www.ecode360.com/28296281#28296281
https://www.ecode360.com/28296282#28296282
https://www.ecode360.com/28296283#28296283
https://www.ecode360.com/28296284#28296284


 
           

PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 
Via Video Conference 

 5:30 pm; Thursday, March 31, 2022 
 
 

The Plan Commission held a special session via video conference on Thursday, March 31, 
2022. The meeting commenced at 5:30 pm and concluded at approximately 6:50 pm. 

 
1. Roll Call 

 
Present       
Margaret Holly     
Mark Harvey (joined at 6:24) 
Ellen Hartz  
Charles Gascon 
Patricia McQueen  
 
Absent  
Al Fleischer Jr. 
Victoria Gonzalez 

     
Staff Present 
John Wagner, Acting Director of Planning and Development 
John Mulligan, City Attorney 
 
Councilmembers Present  
Jeff Hales, Ward I – Council Liaison  

 
Call to Order – (5:30 pm.) Chairwoman Holly called the meeting to order.  
 

2. Approval of Minutes – None 
 

3. Public Comments 
 There were no public comments for non-agenda items from the public 
 
4. Old Business  

a. Development Plan & Blight Study 353 Review/Recommendation. 
       Applicant: Charles Deutsch and Company 
 Request: Study and Recommendation of 100% Tax Abatement for 5 Years  
 Address: 8630 Delmar Blvd 
  (VOTE REQUIRED) 

 

Department of Planning and Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 505-8500, Fax: (314) 862-3168 

 

K - 1 - 5



March 31, 2022 
Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 

 

 
2 

 

Chairwoman Holly introduced the agenda item 
 
She said it was necessary to make a 514.40 determination again due to changes in parts of 
the property included in the project. Tax figures have been changed. She noted that two 
votes were necessary for this item: one vote was necessary to recommend blight and one 
vote was necessary to recommend tax abatement. 
 
Staff report was given by Dr. Wagner and Mr. Mulligan. Legal definitions were read. 
 
Mr. Gascon asked what the definition of “area” is for this project.  
Mr. Mulligan clarified that it is only the land to be re-developed. 
 
Gerald Greiman, counsel for Applicant, spoke about the changes that have occurred since 
blight was determined by the commission in August 2020.  
 
Mark Spykerman, special counsel for University City, was available for comments.  
 
Public comments: 
William Ash, 8690 W. Kingsbury.  Refer to audio recording for details. 
 
Mr. Gascon asked whether there have been maintenance efforts by the property owner 
since they owned the properties. They responded that normal maintenance had occurred 
outdoors but no none of the properties were updated. They stated that the structures were 
obsolescent. 
 
Mr. Gascon stated that neglect is not the same thing as Boyd. He referred to point number 
0.6 in their memo about litter and abandoned vehicles. He said that this was neglect rather 
than blight. Mr. Greimen said that there were no abandoned cars seen on the property at 
this time. 
 
Mr. Gascon questioned them about economic liability versus economic viability. They 
answered that they could not invest in these properties due to lack of money for 
redevelopment. Therefore, the properties were not economically viable. 
 
Mr. Gascon asked them about the economic liabilities in the social liabilities that the 
developer sales today. They answered that the property values have declined therefore they 
are not generating tax revenue. The rents are not high enough to maintain the properties 
and therefore they continue to deteriorate.   
 
Ms. Hartz moved that the blight be approved. 
 
Discussion ensued. 
 
Mr. Hales noted exterior violations that occurs with absentee landlords. This a big problem. 
He questioned what would happen next if this project does not go forward. Mr. Wagner 
agreed that exterior violations were the most noticeable violations.  Mr. Hales also 
questioned what has changed materially since the original blight consideration. 
 
Ms. Holly noted that a new state law has changed the definition of blight. The bar was 
lowered. An ‘and’ was replaced with an ‘or’. Therefore, a new plan and a new definition have 

K - 1 - 6



March 31, 2022 
Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 

 

 
3 

 

been in place since the last blight determination. She also stated that there are new 
members of the Commission, and they were weighing in with fresh eyes. 
 
Mr. Mulligan stated that city code 510.04 blighted area is not equal to the state code. The 
Applicant’s analysis meets state code. Their process has been explained with regard to 
blight determination. He stated that the city Council did not ever put on their agenda to 
approve the April 2020 blight recommendation. He also stated that the applicant was 
requesting tax abatement that was the maximum allowed under state law. 
 
There was a discussion about the state versus the city definitions of blight. 
 
Ms. Holly asked if there was more discussion. Hearing none, she closed the discussion and 
called for a vote. 
 
Vote on blight determination: 

Yes   3 
No 2 
The measure passed 

 
Applicant Request for tax abatement of 100% for 5 years. 
(Vote Required) 
 
Ms. Holly asked for a motion to approve tax abatement of 100% for five years. 
 
Ms. Hartz so moved. 
 
Ms Holly asked for discussion. 
 
Mr. Gascon noted that the current property did not generate a reasonable tax revenue for 
the city. Therefore, it was a liability that would be put back on the city if the property remains 
undervalued. 
 
Mr. Harvey commented about taxes being generated by future development. 
 
Ms. Holly made comments and observations about this package that was presented to 
support this application. She called for a vote. 
 
Vote on Tax Abatement: 

Yes  1 
No 4 

 
The measure did not pass. 

 
5. New Business 

a. None 
6. Other Business 

a. None 

K - 1 - 7



March 31, 2022 
Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 

 

 
4 

 

  
7. Reports  

a. Council Liaison Report – None 
b. Committee reports - None 

 
8. Adjournment 

Chairwoman Holly adjourned the meeting at approximately 6:50 pm. 

K - 1 - 8



 
 

M E M O R A N D U M  
 

TO:    Plan Commission 
FROM:   John Wagner, Acting Director of Planning & Development 
DATE:   March 23, 2022 

SUBJECT: Avenir Chapter 353  

 
 

This agenda item concerns the request by Charles Deutsch and Company for a tax abatement 
proposal for the recently approved Avenir development. Specifically, the Commission will be 
considering a Chapter 353 Tax Abatement Application request for 100% tax abatement for five 
(5) years. The proposed tax abatement will be associated with a mixed-use development of 6.2 
acres. Specifically, the development will be along the south side of Delmar Boulevard, and 
between McKnight Place and Kingdel Drive. The development will be comprised of 262 
apartments and a 1,300 square-foot coffee shop. 
 
In accordance with the provisions set forth in Section 510.070 of the University City Code the 
request pertaining to this application requires a commission recommendation to the Mayor and 
Council to determine the following;  

1.  Whether the area proposed to be redeveloped pursuant to the plan is a blighted area   
as defined in Section 510.040 and redevelopment of the area under the Urban 
Redevelopment Corporation Law and this Chapter is necessary or advisable to 
effectuate the public purposes declared herein and is in the public interest; 

2.      Whether the plan is in the public interest; 

3.  Whether the public facilities of school, fire, water, sewer, police, transportation, park 
and playground, public or private are presently adequate or will be adequate at the 
time the redevelopment project is completed; 

4.  Whether the proposed changes, if any, in zoning ordinances or maps are necessary 
or desirable for the redevelopment of the area or its protection against blighting 
influences or both; 

5.  Whether the acquisition of any part of the real property included in the area to be 
redeveloped pursuant to the plan by eminent domain is for the public convenience 
and necessity; 

6.  Whether the proposed changes, if any, in streets and street levels or any proposed 
street closings are necessary or desirable for the redevelopment of the area or as 
protection against blighting influences or both; 

7.  Whether the size of the area proposed by the proposed plan will allow a practical and 
satisfactory development. 

 
Attachments: 

1. Development Dynamics Memo (Feb. 15, 2022) 
2. Development Plan for Delmar Boulevard Redevelopment Area (Feb. 14, 2022) 

PLAN COMMISSION 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 

K - 1 - 9

https://www.ecode360.com/28296278#28296278
https://www.ecode360.com/28296249#28296249
https://www.ecode360.com/28296279#28296279
https://www.ecode360.com/28296280#28296280
https://www.ecode360.com/28296281#28296281
https://www.ecode360.com/28296282#28296282
https://www.ecode360.com/28296283#28296283
https://www.ecode360.com/28296284#28296284


K - 1 - 10



K - 1 - 11



K - 1 - 12



K - 1 - 13



K - 1 - 14



K - 1 - 15



K - 1 - 16



K - 1 - 17



K - 1 - 18



K - 1 - 19



K - 1 - 20



K - 1 - 21



K - 1 - 22



K - 1 - 23



K - 1 - 24



K - 1 - 25



K - 1 - 26



K - 1 - 27



K - 1 - 28



K - 1 - 29



K - 1 - 30



K - 1 - 31



K - 1 - 32



K - 1 - 33



K - 1 - 34



K - 1 - 35



K - 1 - 36



K - 1 - 37



K - 1 - 38



K - 1 - 39



K - 1 - 40



K - 1 - 41



K - 1 - 42



K - 1 - 43



K - 1 - 44



K - 1 - 45



K - 1 - 46



K - 1 - 47



K - 1 - 48



K - 1 - 49



K - 1 - 50



K - 1 - 51



K - 1 - 52



K - 1 - 53



K - 1 - 54



K - 1 - 55



K - 1 - 56



K - 1 - 57



K - 1 - 58



K - 1 - 59



K - 1 - 60



K - 1 - 61



K - 1 - 62



K - 1 - 63



K - 1 - 64



K - 1 - 65



K - 1 - 66



M - 1 - 1



Resolution 2022 - 8 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 (FY23) 
BUDGET – AMENDMENT # 1 AND APPROPRIATING SAID AMOUNTS 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of University 

City, Missouri, that the Annual Budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2022, was 

approved by the City Council and circumstances now warrant amendment to that original 

budget. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in accordance with the City Charter, the amount 

stated in the budget amendment as presented, are herewith appropriated to the object and 

purpose named. 

 
Adopted this 25th day of July 2022. 

 
      

________________________________ 
     Mayor  

 
Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
Certified to be Correct as to Form: 
 
 
_______________________________  
City Attorney 
 
 

M - 1 - 2



Budget

Following is a revised cost estimate for completion of the scope of services revised 
as of June 2, 2022.

Phase Proposed Cost

Phase 1: Preparation $22,790

Phase 2: Public Engagement $47,135

Phase 3: Analysis $86,570

Phase 4: Plan Development $41,170
Total Fee $198,285 

In addition to the professional fee above, expenses will be reimbursed as 
accrued with a target of $15,000.

M - 1 - 3



M - 1 - 4


	K1 - Avenir Charpter 353 Referral R.pdf
	4. Avenir Chapter 353 - March 23 PC Packet.pdf
	1. PC Memo For March 23 Meeting
	2. Development Dynamics Memo (Feb. 15, 2022)
	3. Development Plan for Delmar Boulevard Redevelopment Area (Feb. 14, 2022)

	Blank Page

	2022-07-25 Special Council Meeting Agenda.pdf
	Observe and/or Listen to the Meeting (your options to join the meeting are below):
	Or iPhone one-tap :
	Citizen Participation and/or Public Hearing Comments:

	J2 - Ferguson Ave Sidewalks TAP.pdf
	Blank Page

	M1 -  Resolution 2022-08 Budget Amendment 1.pdf
	Blank Page

	K1 - Avenir Charpter 353 Referral.pdf
	4. Avenir Chapter 353 - March 23 PC Packet.pdf
	1. PC Memo For March 23 Meeting
	2. Development Dynamics Memo (Feb. 15, 2022)
	3. Development Plan for Delmar Boulevard Redevelopment Area (Feb. 14, 2022)

	Blank Page

	2022-07-25 Special Council Meeting Agenda.pdf
	Observe and/or Listen to the Meeting (your options to join the meeting are below):
	Or iPhone one-tap :
	Citizen Participation and/or Public Hearing Comments:

	2022-07-25 Special Council Meeting Agenda.pdf
	Observe and/or Listen to the Meeting (your options to join the meeting are below):
	Or iPhone one-tap :
	Citizen Participation and/or Public Hearing Comments:




